



Table of Contents

Chapter 1: Legal Mandate and Purpose	2
Chapter 2: Strategic Objectives	2
Chapter 3: Institutional Architecture and Governance (Part I $-$ Central Oversight and Program	
Office)	
Chapter 4: Implementation Framework	11
Chapter 5: Fiduciary Architecture and Financing Instruments	14
Chapter 6: Compliance and Ethics	16
Table 6-A — Compliance Domains and Core Obligations	18
Table 6-B — Enforcement Instruments and Triggers	19
Chapter 7: Regional Replication and Integration	20
Table 7-A — REC Pathways and DGIP Replication Logic	20
Table 7-B — Shared Standards and Accreditation	21
Table 7-C — DGIP Regional Replication Roadmap	23
Chapter 8: Programme Benefits and Economic Rationale	24
Table 8-A — Benefit Families, Example Indicators, and Verification	25
Chapter 9: Measurement, Reporting, and Verification (MRV)	27
Table 9-A — KPI Families and Illustrative Indicators	28
Chapter 10: Stakeholder Engagement and Capacity Building	29
Table 10-A — Engagement Tiers, Obligations, and Legal Instruments	30
Table 10-B — DGIP Governance Curriculum (Modules and Tiers)	31
Table 10-C — Certification & Accreditation (Requirements and Evidence)	32
Chapter 11: Participation and Partnership Framework	33
Table 11-A — Partner Classes, Entry Conditions, Obligations, and Verification	34
Table 11-B — Participation Workflow (Steps, Evidence, and Exit Criteria)	35
Table 11-C — CTAs (Partner Class, Opportunity, Obligations, Verification)	36
Chapter 12: Closing Statement and Expected Data Usage (Monthly/Annual), with Rationale for Fiber Optics versus Satellite Connectivity	
Table 12-A — Indicative Monthly Data Usage (per active user), by Role and Connectivity Typ	e 39
Table 12-B — Connectivity Design Choices (Government Digitalisation)	40
Sources (kev citations)	41



DESA Governance Innovation Programme

Chapter 1: Legal Mandate and Purpose

The DESA Governance Innovation Programme (DGIP) is hereby established as a compulsory instrument within the DESA Education and Innovation Centre portfolio. Its mandate derives from the overarching DESA Framework Charter and is anchored in the sovereign obligation of Member States to modernise governance systems in accordance with principles of legality, transparency, and interoperability. DGIP shall operate under the authority of the DESA Central Unit and shall be binding upon all DESA implementations, subject to national ratification through Host Country Agreements and Operating Circulars.

The purpose of DGIP is to replace fragmented public administration structures with secure, interoperable systems governed by clear legal bases. This mandate encompasses the development and deployment of digital identity frameworks, civil registry systems, case management platforms, and records management protocols, all integrated through interoperable APIs and service portals. DGIP shall further institutionalise policy simulation tools to enable evidence-based decision-making and predictive governance modelling.

DGIP is aligned with the following continental and regional frameworks:

- Agenda for Social Equity 2074 (Agenda 2074), serving as the normative anchor for equity-driven governance and institutional resilience.
- Agenda 2063 of the African Union, particularly Aspiration 3 on good governance, democracy, and respect for human rights.
- African Development Bank High 5 Priorities, with emphasis on "Improve the Quality of Life for the People of Africa" and "Integrate Africa."
- **COMESA Digitalisation Strategy**, ensuring harmonisation of standards for cross-border interoperability and regional integration.

DGIP shall be recognised as a sovereign, ethical, and scalable solution, designed to advance governance modernisation while safeguarding constitutional principles, data protection, and algorithmic transparency.

Chapter 2: Strategic Objectives

The strategic objectives of DGIP are formulated to advance governance innovation as a catalyst for institutional efficiency, social equity, and market activation. These objectives are expressed in narrative form to reflect their systemic and interdependent nature:

First, DGIP seeks to institutionalise a unified digital governance architecture that eliminates administrative fragmentation and ensures legal certainty across all tiers of government. By embedding secure identity systems and interoperable registries, DGIP will enable seamless service delivery and strengthen the rule of law.

Second, the programme aims to enhance fiscal discipline and public accountability through the integration of e-procurement platforms, open contracting standards, and real-time audit mechanisms.



This objective is designed to improve budget execution rates, reduce leakages, and foster public trust in state institutions.

Third, DGIP will promote inclusive governance by deploying policy simulation tools and algorithmic transparency frameworks that empower decision-makers to anticipate socio-economic impacts and mitigate systemic risks. This approach ensures that governance innovation is not merely technological but substantively equitable and participatory.

Fourth, DGIP shall contribute to the development of human capital and institutional capacity by embedding governance innovation within educational curricula and professional certification pathways. This objective aligns governance modernisation with the broader DESA mandate to integrate education, markets, and social equity.

Collectively, these objectives position DGIP as a cornerstone of DESA's long-term vision, ensuring that governance systems evolve from manual, opaque structures to digital, transparent, and citizen-centric ecosystems.

Chapter 3: Institutional Architecture and Governance (Part I — Central Oversight and Programme Office)

The governance architecture of the DESA Governance Innovation Programme (DGIP) is constituted to ensure legal certainty, institutional accountability, and interoperable service delivery across public administration. DGIP shall operate under the custodianship of the DESA Education & Innovation Centre (DEIC) with supreme oversight by the DESA Central Unit, mirroring the multi-tier model and reporting discipline adopted for DEIP and DAIP to guarantee coherence across the DESA portfolio.

3.1 Central Oversight

DEIC serves as the normative and technical authority for DGIP, responsible for policy formulation, standards, accreditation, and inter-programme harmonisation. DEIC shall issue Operating Circulars and Binding Technical Standards governing digital identity, civil registry, case and records management, interoperability (API governance), service portals, and policy simulation tooling. The DESA Central Unit retains approval power over programme charters, financing instruments, and cross-border protocols, providing continuity with the centralised governance used for DEIP and DAIP.

A **DGIP Advisory Board** shall be convened under DEIC mandate to validate major decisions and safeguard alignment with continental and regional strategies. Its membership includes senior representatives designated by the Prime/Finance & Planning ministries, national data protection authorities, supreme audit institutions, academia, and private sector partners contracted under e-procurement and open contracting regimes. The Advisory Board meets biannually to review programme performance, rule on derogations, and confirm compliance with Zero Trust controls, sovereign hosting policies, and algorithmic transparency obligations, following the cadence and validation logic demonstrated in the education and AI programmes.

3.2 Programme Office Structure

DGIP shall be executed through a dedicated Programme Office within DEIC. The Office is organised into directorates and specialist units reflecting the scope mandated for governance modernisation, with lines of service designed to converge policy, technology, and compliance.

a) Legal, Standards & Institutional Design Directorate.



Drafts and maintains the DGIP Legal Code (Operating Circulars, MoUs, Standards), codifies the legal bases for identity, registry, records and case systems, and oversees model legislation for API governance, open contracting and e-procurement. It also chairs the National Digital Architecture Council (N-DAC) secretariat function to ensure cross-ministerial interoperability and lawful data exchange.

b) Identity & Civil Registry Directorate.

Designs national digital identity frameworks and civil registry modernisation, including enrolment, credential issuance, and trust services. It ensures linkage to sector registers (business, land, health, education) through verified APIs and publishes conformance profiles for service portals.

c) Case & Records Systems Directorate.

Leads the replacement of fragmented case handling and records management with unified platforms that implement legal retention schedules, audit trails, and evidence preservation. It supervises data classification, lawful processing, and disposal protocols to meet statutory requirements.

d) Interoperability & APIs Directorate.

Sets national API standards, schema registries, and gateway governance; operates the DGIP **Interoperability Hub** for secure, audited data exchange among ministries and agencies; enforces vendor-neutrality and portability consistent with DESA practice in other programmes.

e) Security & Sovereign Hosting Directorate.

Institutionalises Zero Trust architecture across identity, registry, case, and portal services; maintains privileged access management, configuration baselines, key management, and continuous monitoring. It issues **Sovereign Hosting Policies** defining data residency, jurisdiction, and lawful cross-border transfers, and certifies hosting environments (national, regional, hybrid) against DGIP controls.

f) e-Procurement & Open Contracting Directorate.

Implements standards-based public procurement with end-to-end transparency (planning, tender, award, execution), embeds spend analytics and anomaly detection, and ensures publication of open contracting data for public trust and auditability, using the results-reporting discipline adopted across DESA initiatives.

g) Policy Simulation & Analytics Unit.

Provides macro- and meso-level policy simulation capability for fiscal, social, and service delivery scenarios; ensures model documentation, explainability notes, and independent validation of algorithms; integrates with governance dashboards and MRV pipelines established by DESA to support evidence-based decision-making.

h) Compliance, Ethics & Grievance Unit.

Enforces the DGIP Compliance Code, including data protection, accessibility, algorithmic transparency, and inclusion safeguards; operates grievance redress channels and corrective action procedures; coordinates independent audits and public disclosure schedules, harmonised with DEIC's MRV framework.

i) MRV & Public Dashboards Unit.

Maintains KPI families, reporting cadence, and the publication of public dashboards; consolidates quarterly compliance reports from national counterparts, biannual Advisory Board briefings, and annual performance reviews mapped to Agenda 2063/COMESA indicators, in line with MEL/MRV structures established under DEIP/DAIP.



3.3 Authority Instruments and Internal Controls

The Programme Office shall exercise its mandate through a controlled instrument set: (i) DGIP Operating Circulars defining binding requirements and derogation procedures; (ii) Standards and Conformance Profiles for identity, registry, records, APIs, portals, procurement and policy simulation; (iii) Accreditation Protocols for platforms and hosting; and (iv) Audit Directives that mandate independent verification and public disclosure. Internal controls include separation of duties, change-control with configuration baselines, privileged access management, continuous compliance monitoring, and incident response playbooks integrated with grievance redress—controls that mirror DESA's proven assurance model across education and AI integration.

3.4 Linkages to DESA Portfolio Governance

To avoid duplication and ensure portfolio coherence, DGIP shall maintain formal linkages with DEIP (for capacity and curriculum interfaces affecting civil-service training) and DAIP (for analytics, dashboards, and algorithmic governance), including shared accreditation registers and knowledge repositories. These linkages are documented in cross-programme annexes and facilitated by DEIC's central standards function.

3.5 National Digital Architecture Council (N-DAC)

Each DESA jurisdiction shall constitute a National Digital Architecture Council (N-DAC) as the sovereign forum for legal, architectural, and operational coordination of governance systems modernised under DGIP. The N-DAC functions as the lawful instrument through which identity, registry, case and records systems, API governance, service portals, and policy simulation tooling are standardised and supervised across ministries and agencies, mirroring the layered oversight and cadence already applied in DEIP and DAIP to ensure portfolio coherence and auditability.

The N-DAC is chaired by the Prime Minister or the Minister of Finance/Planning (or their designated Permanent Secretary) and is composed of principal custodians of state systems: the national Chief Information Officer; heads of identity and civil registry authorities; custodians of records acts; controllers of e-procurement; directors of service portals; the national data protection authority; the supreme audit institution; and representatives of sector registries (business, land, health, education). The Council is mandated to enact binding Operating Circulars and Conformance Profiles for Zero Trust controls, sovereign hosting requirements, and cross-ministerial API standards, all of which shall be aligned with recognised frameworks and regional instruments to safeguard legality, security, and interoperability. In particular, N-DAC shall reference the African Union's Agenda 2063 Second Ten-Year Implementation Plan (2024–2033) for institutional responsiveness and integration, COMESA's IDEA programme for regional harmonisation of digital platforms, the Open Contracting Data Standard for transparent procurement, NIST SP 800-207 for Zero Trust architecture, and the AU Convention on Cyber Security and Personal Data Protection (Malabo Convention) for lawful processing and cross-border data discipline.

N-DAC's statutory functions are fourfold. First, it codifies the National API Governance Code and maintains the schema registry and gateway policies that lawfully enable interoperable, audited data exchange across ministries and agencies. Second, it approves sovereign hosting and residency determinations, including lawful bases for regional replication and controlled data egress, with Zero Trust enforcement across all DGIP systems. Third, it institutionalises open contracting and spend analytics as a fiduciary obligation, ensuring e-procurement disclosures, anomaly detection, and public reporting in conformity with OCDS. Fourth, it validates policy simulation tools through documented



model governance, explainability, and independent technical review prior to production use—maintaining consistency with DESA's MRV discipline applied in DEIP and DAIP.

3.6 Country Steering Committees and Implementation Units

Under each DESA unit (e.g., SUDESA, NADESA), a Country Steering Committee (CSC) shall be established by resolution to translate N-DAC determinations into executable programmes, budgets, and compliance obligations. The CSC is chaired by the national DESA Director-General and includes line ministries (Prime/Finance & Planning, Interior, Justice, ICT, sector ministries), the national data protection authority, the supreme audit institution, and the e-procurement regulator. The CSC appoints a DGIP Implementation Unit as the permanent operational arm responsible for platform selection and accreditation, procurement, configuration baselines, onboarding, change-management, and continuous compliance monitoring, maintaining the same reporting discipline adopted for education and AI integration.

The CSC's legal instruments include Memoranda of Understanding with participating ministries and agencies; Operating Circulars to embed identity, registry, case and records standards; Accreditation Orders for hosting environments and gateways; and Publication Orders for open contracting and MRV dashboards. In performing these functions, the CSC shall ensure that policy and implementation are traceably aligned to Agenda 2063 institutional objectives and COMESA's IDEA regional coordination platform, including cross-border interoperability where lawful, capacity building, and shared services pooling.

Data protection and cyber-security obligations under the Malabo Convention are incorporated by reference into CSC Operating Circulars, including lawful bases for processing; data subject rights; security measures; cross-border transfer rules; and supervisory authority liaison. Zero Trust enforcement is treated as a structural control—continuous authentication/authorisation, least-privilege access, segmentation of resources, and telemetry-driven assurance—consistent with NIST SP 800-207.

3.7 Reporting Lines, Cadence, and Public Disclosure

The reporting architecture ensures legal certainty, auditability, and public trust:

1. Agencies → DGIP Implementation Unit.

All agencies participating in DGIP submit monthly operational reports and compliance attestations covering identity and registry performance, case/records handling metrics, API transaction logs, Zero Trust posture, e-procurement disclosures (OCDS-compliant), and portal service metrics. Data are normalised and ingested into the national MRV pipeline operated by the Implementation Unit. [standard.o...acting.org]

2. DGIP Implementation Unit → Country Steering Committee.

The Implementation Unit consolidates data and issues quarterly compliance reports to the CSC, with trend analysis, risk registers, corrective action plans, and expenditure tracking mapped to public procurement and budget execution improvements. The quarterly cadence and public dashboard model mirror DESA's established MEL/MRV discipline across DEIP and DAIP, ensuring comparability and cross-programme learning. [DESA DEIP...Programme | Word], [DESA DAIP | PDF]

3. Country Steering Committee → N-DAC.

The CSC files quarterly architecture conformance statements to N-DAC, including attestation of API standards adherence, sovereign hosting compliance, and Zero Trust enforcement. N-DAC



may issue binding remedial directives, adjust Conformance Profiles, and escalate matters to DEIC where cross-border implications or systemic risks are identified. Alignment notes shall reference Agenda 2063 (institutional responsiveness, integration) and COMESA IDEA protocols where regional pooling or replication is proposed.

4. N-DAC → DEIC and DESA Central Unit.

Biannual strategic reviews are submitted to DEIC for portfolio harmonisation, with an annual consolidated performance report to the DESA Central Unit, cross-walking to Agenda 2063 indicators and regional digitalisation priorities. Public disclosure is effected through national dashboards and DEIC's portfolio dashboard, consistent with the transparency obligations practiced across DESA programmes.

Public dashboards shall publish service backlogs and processing times, budget execution rates, audit trails, open contracting datasets (planning, tender, award, contract, implementation), API uptime and error budgets, and Zero Trust control health. Dashboards must expose machine-readable datasets in OCDS and publish conformance statements referencing Malabo Convention articles for data protection and NIST SP 800-207 control summaries for security posture.

In formal terms, these national governance interfaces establish lawful, interoperable, and ethically governed public administration. They provide a clear chain of authority and responsibility from agencies to N-DAC, and onward to DEIC and the DESA Central Unit, with a reporting cadence and disclosure regime aligned to continental objectives and regional harmonisation instruments, and consistent with the standards already institutionalised under DEIP and DAIP

3.8 Compliance Architecture and Legal Bases

DGIP's compliance regime is codified under the DGIP Compliance Framework, annexed to the DESA Institutional Governance Manual, and harmonised with national statutes, regional protocols, and international benchmarks. Its legal bases include:

- **DESA Charter and Operating Circulars**: Establishing fiduciary, ethical, and interoperability standards.
- **National ICT and Data Protection Acts**: Governing lawful processing, retention, and disposal of personal and official records.
- **Regional Protocols**: COMESA interoperability standards and AfDB safeguard policies for fiduciary and operational integrity.
- International Benchmarks: WCAG accessibility guidelines, Open Contracting Data Standard (OCDS), and NIST SP 800-207 Zero Trust principles for security posture.

Compliance obligations under DGIP are binding and enforceable through statutory instruments issued by N-DAC and CSCs, including Accreditation Orders, Audit Directives, and Publication Mandates.

3.9 Compliance Mechanisms and Instruments

DGIP enforces compliance through a structured set of mechanisms:

a) Mandatory Pre-Deployment Audits

All identity, registry, case management, and portal systems must undergo accessibility audits (WCAG-aligned), Zero Trust posture validation, and algorithmic transparency checks prior to production release. Audit certificates are logged in the DGIP Accreditation Registry maintained by DEIC.



b) Continuous Compliance Monitoring

DGIP mandates telemetry-driven monitoring of API transactions, identity verification flows, and procurement events. Compliance dashboards shall expose real-time metrics on uptime, error budgets, and anomaly detection, integrated with MRV pipelines for quarterly reporting.

c) Algorithmic Transparency and Bias Audits

Policy simulation tools and predictive analytics models must publish explainability reports and undergo bias audits to prevent discriminatory outcomes. Audit findings are appended to public dashboards and subject to independent review.

d) Accessibility and Inclusion Safeguards

Universal design principles are enforced across all DGIP platforms and content. Mandatory features include screen-reader compatibility, multilingual interfaces, and assistive technologies for dyslexia, dyscalculia, and mobility impairments. Accessibility conformance statements are published quarterly.

3.10 Independent Audits and Public Disclosure

DGIP institutionalises a dual audit regime:

, ,			Reporting Obligation
Fiduciary Audit	Financial transactions, procurement compliance, tariff safeguards	Annual	Public disclosure via DEIC MRV dashboard and CSC reports
	Identity, registry, case systems, API governance, hosting compliance	Annual	Certificates published in Accreditation Registry
	Algorithmic fairness, explainability, grievance redress effectiveness	Biannual	Findings appended to public dashboards
Accessibility Audit	WCAG compliance, assistive technology integration, multilingual support	Quarterly	Accessibility conformance statements published online

Audits are conducted by accredited third parties under DEIC oversight. Findings trigger corrective action plans with time-bound remediation and escalation protocols where systemic risks are identified.

3.11 Grievance Redress Mechanisms

DGIP mandates a multi-channel grievance redress system to uphold institutional legitimacy and citizen trust:

- **Digital Grievance Portal**: Accessible via national service portals, supporting multilingual submissions and assistive technologies.
- **Escalation Protocols**: Complaints unresolved within 30 days escalate to CSC; systemic issues escalate to N-DAC and DEIC.
- **Transparency Obligations**: Quarterly publication of grievance statistics, resolution timelines, and corrective actions on public dashboards.

Grievance categories include data privacy violations, accessibility failures, algorithmic bias, procurement irregularities, and service delivery delays.



3.12 Enforcement and Sanctions

Non-compliance with DGIP obligations triggers graduated enforcement measures:

- Corrective Action Plans: Mandatory for minor breaches, with remediation deadlines.
- **Suspension of Accreditation**: Applied to platforms or hosting environments failing repeated audits.
- **Funding Reallocation**: Triggered by fiduciary non-compliance or persistent operational deficiencies.
- **Public Disclosure of Non-Compliance**: Published on MRV dashboards to maintain transparency.
- **Escalation to DESA Central Unit**: Severe or systemic breaches may result in suspension of DGIP privileges and referral to national oversight bodies.

Sanctions are adjudicated by N-DAC and validated by DEIC, ensuring due process and proportionality.

3.13 Digital Platform Integration Framework

DGIP institutionalises a unified digital platform architecture to guarantee interoperability, auditability, and lawful data exchange across ministries and agencies. This architecture is codified under the DGIP Platform Governance Code, annexed to the DESA Institutional Governance Manual, and harmonised with regional protocols (COMESA IDEA) and international standards (OCDS, WCAG, NIST SP 800-207).

The integration framework comprises three structural components:

1. DGIP Interoperability Hub

A sovereign gateway for secure, audited API transactions among identity, registry, case management, and service portal systems. The Hub enforces schema validation, encryption, and Zero Trust controls, ensuring lawful cross-ministerial and cross-border data exchange under N-DAC supervision.

2. Credential and Accreditation Registry

A secure repository for identity credentials, platform accreditation certificates, and audit attestations. The Registry operates under role-based access controls and publishes machine-readable conformance statements for transparency and verification.

3. Public Performance Dashboards

A transparency instrument exposing real-time metrics on service delivery, compliance, and fiduciary integrity. Dashboards publish machine-readable datasets (OCDS for procurement, JSON/XML for API health) and accessibility conformance statements, reinforcing public trust and institutional legitimacy.

3.14 Platform Components and Compliance Attributes

Component	Core Functions	Compliance Attributes
Illnteroperability	case systems; schema registry; audit	Zero Trust enforcement; encryption; vendor-neutrality; WCAG compliance for admin UI



Component	Core Functions	Compliance Attributes
Credential Registry	Stores identity credentials, accreditation certificates, audit attestations	Role-based access controls; GDPR/Malabo compliance; immutable audit trails
Service Portals		Multilingual support; accessibility features (screen readers, assistive tech); privacy
Policy Simulation Engine	social policy; scenario modelling	fairness
Procurement Platform	analytics	public disclosure; fiduciary auditability
MRV Dashboards	Real-time KPIs on service backlogs, budget execution, accessibility compliance	Quarterly updates; independent audit integration; machine-readable datasets

3.15 Interoperability Standards and Data Governance

DGIP mandates adoption of harmonised interoperability standards to enable lawful and secure data exchange:

- **API Governance**: REST/JSON schemas registered in the DGIP Schema Registry; versioning and backward compatibility enforced.
- **Security Posture**: Zero Trust architecture applied across all components; continuous authentication, least-privilege access, and telemetry-driven assurance.
- **Data Protection**: Compliance with national laws and Malabo Convention; encryption at rest and in transit; lawful bases for cross-border transfers validated by N-DAC.
- **Accessibility**: WCAG 2.1 compliance for all user interfaces; assistive technologies integrated for dyslexia, dyscalculia, and mobility impairments.

3.16 Public Dashboards and Transparency Obligations

DGIP requires publication of performance metrics through national and DEIC dashboards, ensuring transparency and public accountability. Dashboards shall include:

- **Service Delivery Metrics**: Backlog clearance rates, average processing times, case resolution timelines.
- **Fiduciary Indicators**: Budget execution rates, procurement cycle times, anomaly detection logs.
- **Compliance Scores**: Accessibility audits, Zero Trust posture ratings, algorithmic fairness attestations.



• **Open Data Feeds**: OCDS-compliant procurement datasets; API health metrics; accessibility conformance statements.

Dashboards must support machine-readable formats (JSON, XML) and provide multilingual interfaces to guarantee equitable access.

3.17 Integration with DESA Portfolio

DGIP's platform architecture is interoperable with DEIP and DAIP systems, enabling shared credential registries, unified MRV dashboards, and consolidated knowledge repositories. This integration ensures portfolio coherence, reduces duplication, and reinforces DESA's strategic commitment to sovereign, ethical, and scalable governance modernisation.

Chapter 4: Implementation Framework

4.1 Three-Tier Model (Infrastructure, Application, Capacity)

The DESA Governance Innovation Programme shall be executed through a three-tier model that secures legal sufficiency, operational feasibility, and measurable outcomes across public administration. The Infrastructure Layer establishes sovereign hosting, Zero Trust controls, schema registries, and audited API gateways; the Application Layer deploys digital identity, civil registry, case and records systems, service portals, policy-simulation tooling, and e-procurement conformant with open contracting standards; and the Capacity Layer institutionalises human capital, programme governance, change-management, and continuous compliance monitoring. This layered design aligns with continental and regional instruments that call for responsive institutions and interoperable digital platforms, including Agenda 2063 Second Ten-Year Implementation Plan and COMESA's Inclusive Digitalisation of Eastern & Southern Africa (IDEA) programme, while grounding security in NIST SP 800-207 (Zero Trust Architecture) and transparency in the Open Contracting Data Standard (OCDS), with data protection framed by the AU Malabo Convention.

Table 1 — Three-Tier Model: Layer, Functions, Minimum Controls

Layer	Functions (Government Systems)	Minimum Controls & Standards
Infrastructure	Sovereign hosting; API gateway & schema registry; encryption; telemetry; key management; configuration baselines	Zero Trust (continuous authN/authZ, least-privilege, segmentation) (NIST SP 800-207); sovereign hosting & residency; audited logs.
Application	Digital identity & civil registry; case & records management; service portals; policy simulation; e-procurement	OCDS disclosure across contract lifecycle; WCAG accessibility; algorithmic explainability & bias audits; records retention rules.
Capacity	Programme office operations; change-management; training & certification; compliance monitoring; MRV & audits	Malabo Convention legal bases & rights; quarterly MRV; independent audits; public dashboards; lawful cross-border data protocols.

4.2 Phased Sequencing (Initiation, Scale-Up, Consolidation)

Implementation shall be sequenced over thirty-six months, preceded by a preparatory period. The phases are **Initiation**, **Scale-Up**, and **Consolidation**, with binding entry/exit criteria, deliverables, and lines of accountability that track public-sector modernisation in concert with **Agenda 2063** institutional objectives and COMESA's regional harmonisation pathways.

Table 2 — Sequencing Phases: Objectives, Core Activities, Deliverables, Exit Criteria

Phase	Objectives	Core Activities	Deliverables	Exit Criteria
Phase 0: Design & Partnering (Months 0–3)	operational	design: sovereign hosting	DGIP National Implementation Plan; Conformance Profiles (identity/registry/records/APIs/portals); Data Protection & Zero Trust policies; OCDS publication plan	CSC resolution adopting DGIP; budget envelopes approved; hosting & gateway accreditation; compliance instruments enacted; partner MoUs executed.
Phase 1: Initiation (Months 3–9)	Deliver early operational value and establish assurance baselines	Pilot identity & registry integration; case/records migration in two ministries; gateway go-live; initial service portal; OCDS disclosures for selected procurements; accessibility services; MRV dashboards	Live API gateway & schema registry; pilot identity/registry; first OCDS datasets; accessibility conformance statements; quarterly MRV report	Uptime, error budgets, and data-quality thresholds met; Zero Trust posture validated; WCAG audit passed; public dashboard online.
Phase 2: Scale-Up (Months 9–18)	Expand systems and standardise interoperability across government	Broaden identity/registry coverage; nationwide case/records standards; service portal feature expansion; policy-simulation models with explainability; full e-procurement lifecycle	National records schedule enforced; anomaly detection & spend analytics; algorithmic transparency reports; cross-border interoperability notes; biannual ethics/bias audit	Documented backlog reductions & faster processing times; improved budget execution rates; interoperability validated with regional counterparts;



Phase	Objectives	Core Activities	Deliverables	Exit Criteria
		publication; regional replication protocols under COMESA IDEA		independent operational audit passed.
Phase 3: Consolidation (Months 18–36)	Institutionalise DGIP as a standing function with regional harmonisation	certification cycle; MRV annual	National standards codified; accreditation & renewal schedules; annual public performance report aligned with Agenda 2063 & AfDB priorities	Independent fiduciary & operational audits confirm effectiveness; governance resolutions ensuring continuity; public trust indicators stabilised or improved.

4.3 Institutional Responsibilities and Lines of Accountability

Responsibility is apportioned across organs to ensure legality and continuity. N-DAC holds normative authority for standards and lawful data exchange; Country Steering Committees (CSCs) convert determinations into budgets, instruments, and enforceable obligations; the DGIP Implementation Unit executes procurement, configuration, onboarding, change-management, and telemetry; and DEIC/DESA Central Unit provide portfolio oversight, accreditation, and annual public performance reviews mapped to Agenda 2063 indicators and regional digitalisation priorities.

4.4 Dependencies and Preconditions

Execution requires statutory approvals, sovereign hosting determinations, minimum connectivity and compute baselines, lawful data-sharing instruments, and procurement lead times. Where constraints persist, DGIP mandates edge/offline patterns, phased deployment, and low-bandwidth modalities. Security preconditions are framed by Zero Trust principles (NIST SP 800-207) and privacy by national law and the Malabo Convention; transparency preconditions for procurement are framed by OCDS.

4.5 Success Criteria and Verification

Success is evidenced by measurable reductions in service backlogs and average processing times; improved budget execution rates and audited spend transparency; legally compliant data protection; accessible public portals; and interoperable systems verified through regional pilots. Verification relies on quarterly compliance reports, biannual ethics/bias audits for policy-simulation tooling, annual fiduciary and operational audits, and public dashboards aligned to **Agenda 2063** moonshots on responsive institutions and integration, and COMESA's IDEA coordination platform.

4.6 Contingency and Corrective Actions

If milestones are missed or audits detect substantive non-compliance, the CSC shall issue corrective action plans with time-bound remediation; persistent deficiencies may trigger suspension of accreditation for platforms or hosting environments, reallocation of funding, or escalation to the DESA Central Unit. Transparency obligations include publication of non-compliance notices and remediation outcomes via MRV dashboards, consistent with the disclosure discipline required for e-procurement under OCDS and with security posture reporting aligned to NIST SP 800-207.

4.7 Integration and Harmonisation

DGIP's implementation framework is harmonised with AfDB High 5 priorities—Integrate Africa and Improve the Quality of Life for the People of Africa—and the institutional responsiveness and regional integration ambitions of Agenda 2063. Regional replication and shared services shall leverage COMESA's IDEA mechanisms for capacity building and coordination, ensuring scalability and lawful cross-border data exchange.

Closing Determination

By adopting the three-tier model and phased execution set forth herein, the State affirms DGIP as a sovereign, ethical, and scalable instrument for governance modernisation. The framework binds infrastructure, application, and capacity to legal mandates, security standards, and public transparency requirements recognised across continental and regional instruments, thereby advancing institutional efficiency, public trust, and regional interoperability in a manner consistent with DESA's portfolio governance.

Chapter 5: Fiduciary Architecture and Financing Instruments

5.1 Legal Mandate and Fiduciary Principles

The fiduciary architecture of DGIP is codified under the DESA Financial Governance Manual and harmonised with AfDB safeguard policies, national public finance laws, and regional fiduciary standards. Financing instruments shall adhere to principles of transparency, accountability, value for money, and alignment with development objectives, ensuring that governance modernisation is bankable, auditable, and sustainable.

DGIP financing is structured to reinforce Agenda 2063 institutional responsiveness, AfDB High 5 priorities (particularly *Integrate Africa* and *Improve the Quality of Life for the People of Africa*), and COMESA's digitalisation strategy, while embedding affordability safeguards and tariff controls to prevent exclusionary practices.

5.2 Sources of Financing

DGIP shall mobilise resources through a diversified portfolio to mitigate dependency risk and ensure resilience against fiscal shocks:



Source	Instrument Type	Purpose
DESA Development Fund	Earmarked allocations	Core financing for infrastructure, application deployment, and compliance.
Digital Transformation Investment Facility (DTIF)	Concessional loans and grants	Sovereign hosting, API gateways, and Zero Trust security architecture.
AfDB Participation	Second-lien financing; technical assistance	Regional harmonisation, interoperability pilots, and fiduciary audits.
Private Sector Co-Financing	PPP frameworks; CSR contributions; in-kind support	Platform provisioning, lifecycle management, and sandbox participation.
Development Finance Institutions (DFIs) & Donors	Grants and blended instruments	Accessibility and inclusion components; grievance redress systems.
Cost-Recovery Mechanisms	Certification fees; service contracts	Sustainability beyond initial funding cycle.

5.3 Financing Instruments and Performance-Linked Disbursement

DGIP adopts a **results-based financing model** to ensure that disbursements are contingent upon verified milestones under the MRV framework. Instruments include:

- **Performance-Based Grants**: Linked to operationalisation of identity and registry systems, API gateway uptime, and OCDS-compliant procurement disclosures.
- **Output-Based Aid**: Applied to accessibility and inclusion deliverables (WCAG audits, assistive technology integration).
- **Blended Finance Structures**: Combining concessional loans with private co-financing for infrastructure and platform deployment.
- **PPP Frameworks**: Incorporating tariff safeguards and vendor-neutrality clauses to prevent lock-in and ensure affordability.

Table — Performance-Linked Disbursement Logic

Milestone	Verification Instrument	Trigger for Disbursement
	certificate	Release of infrastructure tranche
OCDS datasets published for ≥80% of procurement events	Public dashboard verification	Release of fiduciary tranche



Milestone	Verification Instrument	Trigger for Disbursement
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	statement	Release of inclusion tranche
Policy simulation engine explainability report published	Ethics & bias audit certificate	Release of analytics tranche

5.4 Tariff Safeguards and Affordability Targets

DGIP mandates tariff safeguards in all PPP agreements for connectivity, hosting, and platform services. Affordability targets shall be codified in Operating Circulars and validated through quarterly compliance reports. Vendor-neutral procurement and pooled resource models are compulsory to prevent monopolistic practices and ensure cost efficiency.

5.5 Risk Mitigation and Contingency Reserves

Financial risks—including funding shortfalls, currency fluctuations, and delayed disbursements—shall be mitigated through:

- Diversification of funding sources.
- Maintenance of contingency reserves within the DESA Development Fund.
- Adoption of hedging instruments for currency risk where applicable.
- Enforcement of strict financial reporting and audit protocols.

5.6 Sustainability Strategy

DGIP's sustainability is secured through:

- **Integration into National Systems**: Embedding DGIP standards into civil-service training and public finance regulations.
- **Cost-Recovery Mechanisms**: Advanced certification fees and service contracts for platform maintenance.
- **Regional Shared Services**: Establishment of DGIP hubs for pooled procurement, hosting, and technical support under COMESA IDEA protocols.
- **Performance-Based Financing**: Future allocations linked to verified MRV metrics and independent audits.

Chapter 6: Compliance and Ethics

6.1 Legal Bases and Scope of Compliance

The compliance and ethics regime of the DESA Governance Innovation Programme (DGIP) is constituted under the DESA Institutional Governance Manual and the DGIP Operating Circulars, and is expressly harmonised with continental, regional, and global instruments that provide legal certainty for digital governance. DGIP's normative alignment includes Agenda 2063's Second Ten-Year Implementation Plan (2024–2033), which mandates responsive institutions and regional integration; COMESA's Inclusive Digitalisation of Eastern & Southern Africa (IDEA) programme, which formalises regional harmonisation of secure platforms and trusted transactions; NIST SP 800-207 for Zero Trust



controls; the Open Contracting Data Standard (OCDS) for fiduciary transparency; WCAG 2.1 for accessibility; and the AU Convention on Cyber Security and Personal Data Protection (Malabo Convention) for lawful processing and cross-border discipline.

DGIP's legal bases are operationalised through N-DAC resolutions and Country Steering Committee instruments, ensuring that identity, registry, case and records systems, API governance, service portals, and policy simulation tooling are deployed under clear legal mandates, security assurances, and public disclosure obligations. This structure supports AfDB's current Ten-Year Strategy (2024–2033) focus on economic governance and institutional resilience, reinforcing development partner confidence in auditability and results reporting.

6.2 Data Protection, Sovereign Hosting, and Lawful Transfer

DGIP incorporates the Malabo Convention by reference into national Operating Circulars and Accreditation Orders, thereby codifying lawful bases for processing, data subject rights, security measures, and conditions for cross-border transfers. Sovereign hosting determinations and residency controls are adjudicated by N-DAC, with Zero Trust enforcement (continuous authentication and authorisation; least-privilege; segmentation; telemetry) mandated for all identity, registry, case, and portal systems in accordance with NIST SP 800-207.

Where regional replication and shared services are required, the legal permissibility of data egress is validated against Malabo's provisions and COMESA IDEA's coordination protocols, with explicit controls for encryption, audited gateways, and documented lawful transfer mechanisms.

6.3 Algorithmic Transparency, Fairness, and Human Oversight

DGIP classifies policy-simulation engines and predictive analytics as regulated decision-support systems. Deployment shall be contingent upon published explainability reports, bias audits, and human-in-the-loop oversight. The ethical basis for these controls is anchored in UNESCO's Recommendation on the Ethics of AI (2021) and the updated OECD AI Principles (2019, revised 2024), which collectively require human-rights centric governance, transparency, and accountability for AI systems across their lifecycle.

DGIP mandates biannual ethics and bias audits for all production models, with findings disclosed on public dashboards and cross-referenced to OECD guidance on trustworthy AI and national AI policies.

6.4 Accessibility and Inclusion Safeguards

DGIP enforces universal design across all government interfaces and public portals, adopting **WCAG 2.1** as the normative accessibility benchmark. Conformance statements shall address perceivable, operable, understandable, and robust criteria (A/AA/AAA), with specific provisions for text-to-speech, speech-to-text, dyslexia-friendly typography, numeracy supports for dyscalculia, and multimodal input for mobility impairments.

Accessibility audits are mandatory prior to release and quarterly thereafter, with public disclosure of audit results and remediation logs. DGIP's inclusion posture is further reinforced by UNESCO's ethics recommendation, which calls for equitable participation and safeguards against discriminatory outcomes.

6.5 Grievance Redress and Remedies

DGIP establishes a national digital grievance mechanism accessible through government portals, with multilingual support and assistive technologies consistent with WCAG. Complaints shall be triaged into privacy/data protection, accessibility, algorithmic bias, procurement integrity, and service delivery



delays. Escalation protocols require resolution within thirty days at agency level; unresolved or systemic matters escalate to the CSC, then N-DAC, with DEIC oversight. Publication of grievance statistics, resolution timelines, and corrective actions is required on public dashboards, consistent with COMESA IDEA stakeholder engagement frameworks for transparency.

6.6 Independent Audits and Public Disclosure

DGIP institutionalises independent audits across fiduciary, operational, ethics/bias, and accessibility domains. Certificates, reports, and corrective action plans are published via MRV dashboards and recorded in the Credential and Accreditation Registry. Audit schedules and disclosure obligations adhere to recognised standards: OCDS for procurement lifecycle transparency; Zero Trust posture validations for security; WCAG alignment for accessibility; and UNESCO/OECD guidance for algorithmic governance.

Table 6-A — Compliance Domains and Core Obligations

Domain	Obligations	Verification & Disclosure
Data Protection & Hosting	encryption; sovereign residency;	Malabo-aligned Operating Circulars; hosting accreditation; quarterly compliance reports; annual public summary [au.int]
Security (Zero Trust)	Continuous authN/authZ; least-privilege; network/resource segmentation; telemetry; incident response	NIST SP 800-207 validation; operational audit certificates; posture ratings on dashboards [nvlpubs.nist.gov]
Procurement Transparency	OCDS-compliant publication across planning, tender, award, contract, implementation; anomaly detection	Machine-readable datasets; spend analytics; independent fiduciary audit; OCID usage and public registry [standard.oacting.org]
Accessibility (WCAG 2.1)	multilingual interfaces: periodic	Accessibility conformance statements; quarterly audit logs; remediation trackers on public portals [w3.org]
Algorithmic Governance	Explainability reports; bias audits; human oversight; model risk classification	Biannual ethics/bias audit; published reports; OECD/UNESCO alignment notes; corrective action plans [legalinstrs.oecd.org], [unesdoc.unesco.org]
Regional Harmonisation	services; interoperability notes;	N-DAC conformance statements; regional replication dossiers; public alignment notes [comesa.int]



6.7 Enforcement Instruments and Sanctions

DGIP applies graduated enforcement to ensure proportionality and due process, adjudicated by N-DAC and validated by DEIC.

Table 6-B — Enforcement Instruments and Triggers

Instrument	Trigger Condition	Action & Timeline
Corrective Action Plan (CAP)	Minor non-compliance (missed metric, minor audit finding)	Time-bound remediation; re-audit within 90 days; public CAP summary on dashboard
Suspension of Accreditation	Repeated audit failures; material security/privacy breach; persistent accessibility non-conformance	Immediate suspension; service continuity plan; re-accreditation only after independent verification
Funding Reallocation	Fiduciary non-compliance; failure to publish OCDS datasets; unresolved procurement irregularities	Tranche withheld/reallocated; fiduciary review; publication of decision and rationale
Formal Censure & Disclosure	Systemic failure, refusal to remediate, or concealment of material facts	Public censure; disclosure on MRV dashboard; notification to oversight bodies
Escalation to DESA Central Unit	National inability to restore compliance or risks with regional repercussions	Portfolio-level intervention; potential suspension of DGIP privileges; remedial governance plan

OCDS publication duties and Zero Trust posture validations are treated as structural compliance conditions; failure to meet them triggers fiduciary re-assessment and operational suspension until remedial actions are verified.

6.8 Monitoring, Reporting, and Verification (MRV) Linkages

DGIP's MRV cadence—monthly operational updates from agencies, quarterly compliance reports to CSCs, biannual strategic reviews to N-DAC/DEIC, and annual public performance reports—is aligned to **Agenda 2063** tracking and COMESA IDEA coordination platforms. All disclosures are machine-readable; procurement datasets follow **OCDS**; accessibility statements follow **WCAG 2.1**; security posture summaries reference **NIST SP 800-207**; and algorithmic governance notes reference **UNESCO** and **OECD** instruments.

Closing Determination

Through these legal bases, safeguards, and enforcement instruments, DGIP affirms a compliance architecture that is sovereign, ethical, and scalable. It binds data protection and security to recognised standards; compels fiduciary transparency via OCDS; guarantees accessibility under WCAG; and operationalises algorithmic accountability under UNESCO/OECD norms—thereby securing institutional legitimacy, public trust, and regional interoperability in line with **Agenda 2063** and COMESA's digitalisation mandate. [au.int], [comesa.int]



Chapter 7: Regional Replication and Integration

7.1 Purpose and Legal Alignment

This Chapter establishes the replication and integration pathways through which the DESA Governance Innovation Programme (DGIP) will be harmonised across the Regional Economic Communities (RECs), beginning with COMESA, and extending to SADC and EAC. The legal and strategic alignment derives from the Agenda 2063 Second Ten-Year Implementation Plan (2024–2033), which emphasises responsive institutions and deeper regional integration; from COMESA's Inclusive Digitalisation of Eastern & Southern Africa (IDEA) programme for trusted, interoperable platforms; from SADC's Digital Transformation Strategy (SADC-DTS) and Action Plan; and from the EAC's regional digital integration initiatives including the Eastern Africa Regional Digital Integration Project (EA-RDIP) and the EAC-EU co-creation roadmap. These instruments collectively provide the normative anchor for replicating DGIP's sovereign architecture, lawful data exchange, and transparency regimes across national borders.

7.2 Harmonisation Framework and Principles

DGIP shall apply a three-part harmonisation framework to ensure standardisation, scalability, and lawful interoperability across COMESA, SADC, and EAC corridors:

1. Standards Convergence.

National **API governance codes**, schema registries, and Zero Trust controls shall be mapped to REC-level guidance and coordination platforms (e.g., COMESA IDEA Component 1 on regional harmonisation and planning; SADC-DTS interventions for updated legal/regulatory frameworks; EAC's EA-RDIP single digital market building blocks). This ensures that identity, registry, records, case systems, and service portals interoperate under uniform conformance profiles.

2. Shared Services and Replication.

DGIP shall establish regional Interoperability Hubs and Shared Credential/Accreditation Registries for participating Member States, aligned to COMESA's IDEA PCU and knowledge components, SADC's DTS implementation observatory, and EAC's digital transformation priorities. The hubs enable pooled procurement, sovereign hosting accreditation, and audited cross-border API transactions under REC oversight.

3. Lawful Data Exchange and Transparency.

Cross-border replication must observe lawful data transfer conditions set by continental and REC instruments, with public procurement datasets published in machine-readable formats, consistent with open contracting guidance. REC dashboards will consolidate national MRV feeds to demonstrate regional progress against Agenda 2063 indicators and REC strategic targets. [au.int]

7.3 Regional Pathways: COMESA, SADC, EAC

Table 7-A — REC Pathways and DGIP Replication Logic

REC	Strategic Instrument(s)	DGIP Replication Focus	REC Interface & Mechanism
COMESA	IDEA Programme (Regional Harmonisation & Planning	Converge national API governance and sovereign hosting standards; establish a	Coordination via COMESA Program Coordination Unit (PCU); adoption of



REC	Strategic Instrument(s)	DGIP Replication Focus	REC Interface & Mechanism
	Platform; Knowledge & Capacity; PCU set-up)	COMESA-aligned Interoperability Hub and Shared Credential/Accreditation Registry; standardise OCDS publication for e-procurement	harmonised protocols; stakeholder and grievance frameworks (SEP/ESCP) to ensure inclusive compliance and public reporting
SADC	SADC-DTS & Action Plan (RISDP 2020–30 alignment; interventions on legal/regulatory harmonisation, e-government, digital skills, and observatory)	Align DGIP standards to DTS interventions; certify regional Zero Trust posture; replicate service portals and policy-simulation tooling; create SADC observatory linkages to MRV dashboards	Use SADC-DTS Observatory and regional programme recommendations to finance foundational studies and joint initiatives; embed harmonised legal/regulatory updates for full digitalisation
EAC	EA-RDIP (Series of Projects for digital integration); EAC-EU D4D cooperation and digital roadmap (connectivity, data governance, e-gov/cybersecurity, e-commerce, ICT regs, innovation, skills)	Integrate DGIP identity/registry APIs with EAC single digital market components; adopt cross-border data governance and secure hosting benchmarks; embed MRV into EAC dashboards	Coordination through EAC Secretariat, leveraging EA-RDIP and D4D-supported roadmap; launch regional pilots on cross-border e-services, payments, and secure data centres

7.4 Standards, Conformance, and Accreditation

DGIP's cross-REC standardisation is effected through Conformance Profiles and Accreditation Orders that bind national systems to shared REC benchmarks. The following table prescribes the instruments and verification methods to be adopted per REC, ensuring portability of certifications and lawful interoperability:

Table 7-B — Shared Standards and Accreditation

Domain	Shared Standard / Benchmark	RFC Alignment	Accreditation & Verification
API Governance & Schema Registry	REC-approved API profiles and schema registries; versioning & gateway policy	COMESA IDEA harmonisation platform; SADC-DTS legal/regulatory update pillar; EAC	N-DAC national conformance statement; REC technical review; interoperability



Domain	Shared Standard / Benchmark	REC Alignment	Accreditation & Verification
		EA-RDIP single digital market milestones	pilot logs and audited API transaction records
Sovereign Hosting & Security	Zero Trust enforcement (continuous authN/authZ; least-privilege; segmented resources; telemetry)	REC security coordination forums; alignment to regional hosting and data residency guidance	Hosting accreditation under N-DAC; REC endorsement based on operational audits; posture scores on REC dashboards
Data Governance & Lawful Transfer	Continental/REC rules for lawful cross-border data exchange	COMESA/IDEA coordination; SADC-DTS harmonised frameworks; EAC data governance workstream	Legal instrument mapping; cross-border transfer registers; periodic legal conformity reviews and public notices
Procurement Transparency	Machine-readable publication across tender/award/contract/implementation (OCDS guidance)	REC procurement and transparency initiatives; regional dashboards integrating national MRV	Accredited OCDS datasets; public OCID registries; REC-level spend analytics and anomaly detection logs
Accessibility & Inclusion WCAG-aligned user interfaces; assistive technologies; multilingual content		REC digital skills/innovation pillars; cross-border portal harmonisation	Quarterly accessibility audits; conformance statements published on national and REC dashboards

7.5 Shared Infrastructure and Knowledge Platforms

DGIP mandates the creation of shared infrastructure aligned with REC strategies:

 Regional Interoperability Hubs. Gateways hosted under sovereign conditions that provide secure, audited API exchange, schema validation, and telemetry for identity, registry, records, case systems, and service portals. COMESA's IDEA platform provides the coordination locus for design, accreditation, and replication; SADC-DTS recommends regional studies and joint



initiatives to operationalise these hubs; EAC's EA-RDIP and D4D roadmap provide programme scaffolding and financing avenues.

- Shared Credential and Accreditation Registries. Cross-REC registries record platform
 accreditations, audit certificates, and conformance profiles, enabling portable recognition of
 national certifications and lawful cross-border data exchange. These registries integrate with
 REC dashboards to provide public verification and compliance tracking consistent with Agenda
 2063 transparency and responsiveness objectives.
- **Knowledge Platforms and Observatories.** DGIP contributes documentation, case studies, and MRV reports to COMESA's knowledge platform and to SADC's Digital Transformation Observatory, while feeding EAC's digital roadmap fora. This shared corpus ensures continuous learning, policy feedback, and coordinated capacity building.

7.6 Replication Roadmap and Phasing

Replication across RECs will proceed in four harmonised steps, with measurable outputs and public verification:

Table 7-C — DGIP Regional Replication Roadmap

Step	Outputs	Verification & Disclosure
1. Legal & Standards Mapping	Cross-walk of national instruments to REC frameworks (COMESA IDEA components; SADC-DTS interventions; EAC EA-RDIP roadmap)	REC technical note; N-DAC conformance statement; publication on REC portals and Agenda 2063 alignment note
2. Interoperability Pilots	Cross-border API pilots (identity/registry/records/portals); hosting posture validations; lawful transfer registers	Pilot reports with audited transaction logs; hosting accreditation certificates; REC dashboard entries
3. Shared Services Roll-out Interoperability Hubs and Credential Registries operational; pooled procurement and shared support		REC resolutions; shared services SLAs; quarterly MRV publication and REC observatory updates
4. Consolidation & Scaling	Portfolio-level replication across Member States; integration of DGIP MRV into REC dashboards and Agenda 2063 reporting	Annual regional performance reports; Agenda 2063 indicator mapping and public disclosure

7.7 Financing and Partnerships at Regional Level

DGIP regional replication shall utilise blended financing mechanisms aligned to REC strategies and multilateral programmes. COMESA's IDEA employs a World Bank-supported Multiphase Programmatic Approach and already includes a COMESA grant for regional coordination; SADC's DTS includes



recommendations for a regional programme co-financed via EU instruments; EAC's EA-RDIP and Team Europe cooperation provide funding windows and technical assistance for digital market integration and secure data infrastructure. These channels will be consolidated through REC-level calls for proposals and performance-linked disbursements consistent with DGIP's fiduciary architecture.

7.8 MRV and Public Dashboards (Regional Level)

DGIP requires that REC dashboards consolidate national MRV datasets to publish:

- **Institutional Performance** (service backlog clearance, processing times, case resolution timelines).
- Fiduciary Indicators (budget execution rates, procurement cycle times, anomaly detection).
- **Compliance Scores** (accessibility audits, Zero Trust posture ratings, lawful transfer registers, algorithmic fairness attestations).
- **Open Data Feeds** (machine-readable procurement datasets, schema registries, accredited hosting lists).

These obligations are consistent with Agenda 2063's second decade governance tracking and with the REC strategies' implementation observatories and coordination platforms. [au.int], [sadc.int]

Closing Determination

DGIP's regional replication and integration pathways are hereby affirmed as sovereign, ethical, and scalable. By converging standards under COMESA's IDEA, implementing shared services under SADC-DTS, and activating cross-border pilots under EAC EA-RDIP and the EAC-EU roadmap, DGIP operationalises Agenda 2063's call for responsive institutions and integrated markets. The prescribed accreditation, lawful data exchange, and transparency instruments guarantee public trust and auditability, while the MRV cadence and REC dashboards provide measurable evidence of progress, enabling performance-linked financing and sustained regional adoption

Chapter 8: Programme Benefits and Economic Rationale

8.1 Purpose and Framing

This Chapter sets out the structural benefits and economic rationale of the DESA Governance Innovation Programme (DGIP). It explains how replacing fragmented administration with secure, interoperable systems—anchored in lawful data governance, Zero Trust controls, open contracting transparency, and accessibility by design—yields measurable improvements in service delivery, fiduciary integrity, and institutional responsiveness, consistent with Agenda 2063's Second Ten-Year Implementation Plan and the regional digitalisation mandates of COMESA (IDEA), SADC-DTS, and EAC. The rationale is evidenced through a results-based measurement schema (MRV) and public dashboards that publish machine-readable datasets for continuous verification.

8.2 Benefit Families and Linkages to Policy Objectives

DGIP's expected outcomes are organised into four interdependent benefit families, each linked to continental and regional strategies:

a) Institutional Efficiency and Service Quality.

DGIP consolidates identity, civil registry, case and records management, and service portals through audited APIs and schema registries. With Zero Trust enforcement and lawful data exchange, ministries reduce service backlogs and average processing times while increasing



auditability and legal certainty. These outcomes directly support Agenda 2063's "responsive institutions" moonshot and REC objectives for trusted digital public infrastructure.

b) Fiduciary Integrity and Value for Money.

OCDS-compliant e-procurement disclosures across planning, tender, award, contract, and implementation increase competition and enable anomaly detection. Budget execution rates improve as spend visibility and contract performance tracking are embedded in public dashboards. This aligns with **AfDB's High 5 priorities** on governance and integration, and with REC-level digital market harmonisation.

c) Legal Compliance, Security, and Public Trust.

Malabo-aligned data protection, sovereign hosting, and Zero Trust security posture reduce operational and reputational risk, while accessibility under **WCAG 2.1** guarantees equitable participation. Published conformance statements and audit logs strengthen citizen confidence in digital government.

d) Economic Activation and Competitiveness.

Predictable, rules-based administration lowers transaction costs for citizens and enterprises and improves the enabling environment for cross-border services (e-payments, digital trade) under COMESA/EAC/SADC pathways—supporting productivity and regional integration.

8.3 Indicative Quantification and MRV Methodology

DGIP quantifies benefits through MRV families already established for DESA programmes (see Chapters 3–6). To preserve legal integrity, all figures are treated as indicative targets and verified through audits and public dashboards.

Table 8-A — Benefit Families, Example Indicators, and Verification

Benefit Family	Illustrative Indicators (national portfolio)	Verification Instruments	
efficiency	Reduction in average processing time (e.g., civil registry/extractive licensing/case closure); backlog clearance rates; portal uptime	MRV quarterly reports; REC dashboard consolidation (COMESA/SADC/EAC)	
Fiduciary integrity	% of procurement published to OCDS; competitive bidding ratio; variance between awarded price and engineer's estimate; budget execution rate	llanalytics and anomaly flags: fiduciary	
Compliance &	Zero Trust posture score; lawful transfer register entries; data subject rights response time; accessibility conformance rate (WCAG 2.1)	NIST SP 800-207 validations; Malabo-aligned Operating Circulars; accessibility audits and remediation logs	
Economic activation	Portal transaction volumes; cross-border service usage (e.g., e-payments, trade facilitation forms); SME onboarding to e-services	REC pilot reports (EA-RDIP/IDEA/DTS); public dashboards aggregating national MRV feeds	

Methodological notes.



Measurement follows three rules: i) machine-readable publication (OCDS, JSON/XML APIs); ii) independent audits (fiduciary, operational, ethics/bias, accessibility); iii) public disclosure with REC consolidation. Targets and baselines are set during Phase 0 (Design & Partnering) and revised annually.

8.4 Economic Rationale: Cost, Savings, and Return Logic

DGIP's economic rationale rests on four mechanisms:

1. Transaction Cost Reduction.

Unified identity/registry and case systems reduce repeat visits, paperwork, and reconciliation across agencies; interoperable APIs remove manual handoffs. Evidence bases for such integration are embedded in REC strategies (regional harmonisation, trusted platforms) and Agenda 2063's institutional efficiency objectives.

2. Procurement Value and Integrity Gains.

OCDS publication increases market contestability and enables detection of red flags (e.g., low competition, contract amendments, price outliers). Over time, transparent procurement is associated with improved value for money and reduced leakage; DGIP operationalises this via dashboards and anomaly analytics.

3. Security Risk Mitigation.

Zero Trust enforcement reduces lateral movement risk and data exfiltration, lowering expected loss from incidents. Malabo-aligned legal bases reduce liabilities related to unlawful processing and cross-border transfers.

4. Regional Market Enablement.

Harmonised standards and shared services (Interoperability Hubs, Credential Registries) reduce integration costs across borders and catalyse digital trade under COMESA/EAC/SADC frameworks.

8.5 Illustrative Efficiency and Savings Targets (to be validated)

DGIP proposes conservative, MRV-verified target ranges to be tailored per jurisdiction during Phase 0 and reviewed annually:

- Service Processing Efficiency. Reduction in average processing times for high-volume services
 after full roll-out (Application Layer live, Capacity Layer certified): indicatively 20–40%,
 dependent on baseline fragmentation and portal uptake.
- **Backlog Clearance.** Backlog reduction in priority agencies post migration and workflow redesign: indicatively 30–60%.
- **Budget Execution.** Improvement in budget execution rates aided by spend visibility and contract performance tracking: indicively +2–5 percentage points.
- Open Contracting Coverage. OCDS publication coverage across the procurement lifecycle: ≥80% of eligible events within 24 months.

All targets are **subject to independent audit** and public disclosure. The attribution framework uses counterfactual comparisons and audit trails consistent with open contracting guidance and REC observatory practices.

8.6 Macroeconomic and Social Spillovers

DGIP's structural improvements have broader effects:



- Competitiveness and SME Participation. Predictable, transparent procurement increases SME access and reduces barriers to market entry—consistent with REC digital market objectives and Agenda 2063's integration moonshot.
- Human Capital and Inclusion. Accessibility obligations (WCAG 2.1) and grievance mechanisms
 improve the legitimacy of public digital services, increasing usage and trust among vulnerable
 groups.
- Cross-Border Services. Harmonised data governance and secure hosting catalyse regional e-services (e-payments, trade facilitation), contributing to integration indicators tracked by COMESA/EAC/SADC.

8.7 Cost-Benefit and Sustainability Considerations

DGIP's costs concentrate in sovereign hosting accreditation, API gateway deployment, migration of legacy systems, and capability building. Benefits accrue through reduced processing overhead, improved procurement outcomes, and lower incident exposure due to Zero Trust posture. Sustainability is ensured via:

- Portfolio-level cost sharing through Shared Services Hubs (REC coordination).
- **Results-linked disbursement** tying financing to audited milestones (OCDS coverage, posture validation, accessibility conformance).
- Public dashboards that publish MRV evidence and support financing continuity under REC observatories and Agenda 2063 reporting.

8.8 Disclosure and Accountability

All benefits are published quarterly on national dashboards and consolidated annually by REC platforms. Datasets must be machine-readable (OCDS and JSON/XML APIs), with audit certificates, conformance statements, and corrective action plans accessible to the public. This fulfils Agenda 2063's transparency and responsiveness requirements and the REC strategies' monitoring provisions.

Chapter 9: Measurement, Reporting, and Verification (MRV)

9.1 Purpose and Normative Basis

The MRV framework for DGIP is established as a binding instrument to ensure transparency, accountability, and continuous performance improvement. It operates under the unified DESA Monitoring, Evaluation, and Learning (MEL) System, harmonised with Agenda 2063 Second Ten-Year Implementation Plan, AfDB High 5 priorities, and REC digitalisation strategies (COMESA IDEA, SADC-DTS, EAC EA-RDIP). The framework guarantees that every operational milestone, fiduciary obligation, and compliance safeguard is traceable, auditable, and publicly disclosed.

9.2 Objectives of MRV

DGIP's MRV framework serves three core objectives:

- 1. **Performance Measurement**: Assess the extent to which DGIP achieves its stated objectives in governance modernisation—identity and registry integration, case and records digitisation, service portal deployment, and policy simulation tooling.
- 2. **Compliance Assurance**: Verify adherence to fiduciary, security, accessibility, and algorithmic governance standards (OCDS, Zero Trust, WCAG, Malabo Convention).



3. **Strategic Alignment**: Demonstrate contribution to Agenda 2063 indicators and REC integration targets, enabling results-based financing and regional replication.

9.3 KPI Families and Indicator Logic

DGIP KPIs are structured into five families, each mapped to programme objectives and REC strategies. Indicators are machine-readable, auditable, and published on public dashboards.

Table 9-A — KPI Families and Illustrative Indicators

KPI Family	Illustrative Indicators	Verification Instruments
Institutional Integration	systems migrated; portal uptime	certificates; MRV dashboards
Fiduciary Transparency	% of procurement events published to OCDS; competitive bidding ratio; anomaly detection alerts	OCDS datasets; spend analytics; fiduciary audit reports
Security & Data Governance	rate	Malabo-aligned legal instruments; hosting accreditation
Accessibility & Inclusion	WCAG 2.1 conformance rate; assistive technology integration; multilingual portal coverage	Accessibility audit logs; conformance statements; remediation trackers
Algorithmic Governance	Number of explainability reports published; bias audit pass rate; corrective action plans executed	Ethics/bias audit certificates; public disclosure on dashboards

9.4 Reporting Cadence and Disclosure Obligations

DGIP mandates a multi-tier reporting cadence:

- **Monthly**: Operational updates from agencies to DGIP Implementation Unit (API uptime, portal metrics, procurement events).
- **Quarterly**: Compliance reports from Implementation Unit to CSC, including fiduciary, security, and accessibility indicators.
- **Biannual**: Strategic reviews by N-DAC and DEIC, validating ethics/bias audits and regional harmonisation progress.
- **Annual**: Public performance report published on national and REC dashboards, cross-referenced with Agenda 2063 indicators and REC observatory metrics.

All reports must be machine-readable (JSON/XML for APIs; OCDS for procurement; WCAG audit logs) and accessible through public dashboards.



9.5 Verification and Independent Audits

DGIP enforces independent audits across four domains:

Audit Type	Scope	Frequency
Fiduciary Audit	Financial transactions, procurement compliance, tariff safeguards	
Operational Audit	Identity, registry, case systems, API governance, hosting compliance	Annual
	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	Biannual
Accessibility Audit	WCAG compliance, assistive technology integration, multilingual support	Quarterly

Audit findings and corrective action plans are published on MRV dashboards and recorded in the Credential and Accreditation Registry.

9.6 Public Dashboards and REC Integration

DGIP requires national dashboards to publish:

- Service Delivery Metrics: Backlog clearance rates, processing times, portal uptime.
- Fiduciary Indicators: OCDS datasets, spend analytics, anomaly detection logs.
- Compliance Scores: Accessibility audits, Zero Trust posture ratings, lawful transfer registers.
- Algorithmic Governance Notes: Explainability reports, bias audit results, corrective actions.

REC dashboards consolidate national MRV feeds to provide regional performance snapshots aligned with COMESA IDEA, SADC-DTS, and EAC EA-RDIP observatories.

9.7 Corrective Action and Enforcement Linkages

Non-compliance triggers corrective action plans with time-bound remediation. Persistent failures escalate to N-DAC and DEIC, with sanctions including suspension of accreditation, funding reallocation, and public censure. Enforcement instruments and timelines are codified under Chapter 6 and cross-referenced in MRV protocols.

Closing Determination

DGIP's MRV framework transforms governance modernisation from a policy aspiration into an evidence-driven implementation platform. By institutionalising KPI families, independent audits, and public dashboards, DGIP guarantees transparency, accountability, and strategic alignment with continental and regional objectives—creating a sovereign, ethical, and scalable model for governance innovation.

Chapter 10: Stakeholder Engagement and Capacity Building

10.1 Purpose, Legal Basis, and Scope

Stakeholder engagement and capacity building under the DESA Governance Innovation Programme (DGIP) are instituted as binding, structural functions of programme governance. Their legal basis is derived from the DESA Institutional Governance Manual and DGIP Operating Circulars, and is harmonised with continental and regional instruments that require responsive, interoperable, and accountable public institutions. Normative alignment is ensured with the Agenda 2063 Second Ten-Year



Implementation Plan (2024–2033)—which mandates institutional responsiveness and deeper regional integration—and with REC mandates, notably COMESA's IDEA programme for regional harmonisation and capacity transfer, SADC's Digital Transformation Strategy and Action Plan (SADC-DTS) for regulatory convergence and skills, and EAC's digital integration initiatives (EA-RDIP and the EAC-EU co-creation roadmap) that frame governance digitalisation and data-economy collaboration. These instruments collectively authorise structured engagement with ministries and agencies, academia, technology partners, and civil society, while codifying capacity-building as a sovereign obligation of the State.

10.2 Stakeholder Map and Instruments

DGIP establishes a sovereign stakeholder map to ensure coherence between legal standards, technical architecture, and operational practice. Engagement is formalised through Memoranda of Understanding (MoUs), Operating Circulars, Accreditation Orders, and Publication Mandates issued by the National Digital Architecture Council (N-DAC) and the Country Steering Committee (CSC). Instruments shall reference and incorporate the applicable standards—including NIST SP 800-207 for Zero Trust security, OCDS for e-procurement transparency, WCAG 2.1 for accessibility, and the AU Malabo Convention for lawful data protection and cross-border transfer.

Table 10-A — Engagement Tiers, Obligations, and Legal Instruments

Stakeholder Tier Primary Obligations		Legal/Technical Instruments	Verification & Disclosure
Prime/Finance & Planning; Interior/Justice; ICT; sector ministries	Adopt and enforce DGIP standards for identity, registry, case/records, APIs, portals; implement lawful data processing and Zero Trust	N-DAC Operating Circulars; Malabo-aligned data protection orders; Zero Trust policies (NIST SP 800-207)	Quarterly compliance reports; annual operational audits; public dashboards
National data protection authority; supreme audit institution; procurement regulator	Supervise lawful processing; certify fiduciary compliance; enforce OCDS publication	Accreditation Orders; audit directives; OCDS publication mandates	Annual fiduciary audit; machine-readable OCDS datasets; OCID registries
Academia (universities, public schools of administration, vocational institutes) Academia Deliver DGIP curriculum innovation/practicum produce applied research		MoUs and Accreditation Agreements; curriculum charters; practicums charter	Instructor certification; lab performance reports; MRV sampling
Technology partners (platform vendors, hosting providers, integrators)	Provision under vendor-neutral standards; sovereign hosting accreditation; API gateway conformance	Conformance Profiles; hosting accreditation; gateway policies; WCAG compliance for interfaces	Operational certifications; accessibility conformance statements;



Stakeholder Tier Primary Obligations		Legal/Technical Instruments	Verification & Disclosure
			REC-aligned interoperability logs
Civil society and inclusion advocates	Monitor accessibility and ethics; participate in grievance redress and beneficiary feedback	Advisory roles; grievance protocols; audit participation	Published audit summaries; quarterly grievance statistics; remediation trackers

10.3 Capacity-Building Architecture and Curriculum

Capacity-building is organised into a DGIP Governance Curriculum, structured to embed legal certainty, technical assurance, fiduciary transparency, and inclusion safeguards within public administration. The curriculum is delivered in three ascending tiers—Foundational, Applied, and Advanced—each with mandatory modules and practicum requirements. Modules shall explicitly incorporate OCDS for procurement disclosure, WCAG 2.1 for accessibility, NIST SP 800-207 for Zero Trust, and Malabo Convention requirements for lawful processing and cross-border transfers; algorithmic governance modules follow the ethical guidance of UNESCO's Recommendation on the Ethics of AI (2021) and the OECD AI Principles (revised 2024).

Table 10-B — DGIP Governance Curriculum (Modules and Tiers)

Tier	Module Title	Core Learning Objectives
1161	iviodule Title	Core Learning Objectives
Foundational	Legal Bases & Institutional Design	Interpret DGIP legal instruments; map national laws to Malabo provisions; understand N-DAC/CSC roles
Foundational	Zero Trust Controls & Sovereign Hosting	Apply continuous authN/authZ, least-privilege, segmentation; determine residency; certify hosting posture (NIST SP 800-207)
Foundational	Records & Case Governance	Implement lawful retention/disposal, audit trails, evidence preservation; configure records systems
Foundational	Accessibility by Design	Implement WCAG 2.1 A/AA criteria; integrate assistive technologies; publish conformance statements
Applied	API Governance & Interoperability	Design schemas, versioning, gateway policy; operate audited API exchange; publish schema registry
Applied	e-Procurement & Open Contracting	Publish OCDS datasets across lifecycle; run anomaly detection and spend analytics; maintain OCID registers
Applied	Service Portals & Grievance Redress	Configure multilingual, accessible portals; operate grievance mechanisms; publish remediation logs



Tier	Module Title	Core Learning Objectives
Annlied	& Policy Simulation	Produce explainability reports; conduct bias audits; maintain human-in-the-loop oversight; trigger corrective actions (UNESCO/OECD)
IIAdvanced I		Implement lawful egress, REC replication, shared services; produce interoperability dossiers (COMESA/SADC/EAC)
Advanced		Operate machine-readable dashboards; compile audit evidence; align with Agenda 2063 indicators and REC observatories

10.4 Delivery Model: Practicums, Innovation Labs, and Shared Services

DGIP mandates Government Innovation Labs and Interoperability Practicums as controlled environments for applied learning, configuration baselines, and evidence generation. Labs, chartered by CSC and accredited by DEIC, host cross-ministerial teams to execute design sprints on identity/registry integration, records governance, API gateway configuration, portal accessibility audits, and OCDS publication—with all outputs recorded in the MRV pipeline.

Regional capacity transfer leverages REC platforms: COMESA's IDEA Program Coordination Unit and knowledge components; SADC-DTS observatory; and EAC EA-RDIP/D4D co-creation fora. Shared services (regional Interoperability Hubs and Credential/Accreditation Registries) are used to train operators, standardise incident response, and validate Zero Trust posture, while REC observatories consolidate performance for cross-border scaling.

10.5 Certification and Accreditation Pathways

DGIP establishes three certification tiers for public officials and institutional units. Certification requires theoretical assessments, practicum deliverables, audit evidence, and published conformance statements. Institutional accreditation is contingent upon lawful data governance, Zero Trust posture validation, OCDS publication coverage, and WCAG conformance, with records governance verified by the supreme audit institution and the data protection authority.

Table 10-C — Certification & Accreditation (Requirements and Evidence)

Pathway	Requirements	Evidence & Registry
	records governance accessibility	Exam results; training logs; accessibility conformance statements recorded in Credential Registry
Tier 2 — Applied	configuration; OCDS datasets;	Practicum reports; audited API transaction logs; published OCDS packages; grievance KPIs



Pathway	Requirements	Evidence & Registry
Advanced	dashboard operation; ethics/bias	Interoperability dossier; MRV snapshots; audit certificates (operational, fiduciary, ethics/bias)
Accreditation	register; OCDS ≥80% coverage; WCAG	Accreditation orders; public dashboard entries; REC endorsement for shared services participation

Certificates and accreditations are recorded in the Credential and Accreditation Registry and are portable under REC protocols.

10.6 Grievance Redress, Inclusion, and Public Participation

Engagement is not merely consultative; it is enforceable through the DGIP Grievance Redress Mechanism embedded in national portals. Complaints shall be categorised (privacy/data protection, accessibility, algorithmic bias, procurement integrity, service delay), triaged, and escalated under time-bound procedures, with quarterly publication of grievance statistics and remediation actions. Inclusion is reinforced by WCAG-aligned designs and assistive technologies; civil society participates in accessibility audits and ethics oversight, with findings posted on public dashboards.

10.7 Financing Linkages and Results-Based Capacity Transfer

Capacity-building is financed within DGIP's fiduciary architecture (Chapter 5), using performance-linked disbursements tied to verified milestones (e.g., OCDS publication coverage, Zero Trust posture certificates, WCAG audit pass rates, MRV dashboard operation). At regional level, COMESA's IDEA Multiphase Programmatic Approach and EAC's EA-RDIP, together with SADC-DTS programme recommendations, provide windows for pooled training, shared service operations, and observatory-driven verification, ensuring affordability and continuity.

10.8 Closing Determination (Chapter 10)

DGIP's stakeholder engagement and capacity-building framework is hereby affirmed as a sovereign, ethical, and scalable governance function. It integrates legal mandates, technical standards, fiduciary transparency, and inclusion safeguards into a single, enforceable architecture. Through accredited curricula, practicums, shared services, and public dashboards, DGIP converts policy intent into durable competence and verified outcomes, aligned with Agenda 2063 and the REC strategies for regional interoperability and institutional legitimacy.

Chapter 11: Participation and Partnership Framework

11.1 Mandate, Legal Basis, and Scope

The Participation and Partnership Framework is hereby constituted as a binding instrument under the DESA Institutional Governance Manual and DGIP Operating Circulars. Its purpose is to regulate entry conditions, roles, obligations, and performance verification for all actors participating in DGIP—public authorities, academia, technology partners (platform vendors, hosting providers, systems integrators), development finance institutions (DFIs), and international partners—within a lawful, secure, and transparent governance modernisation ecosystem.



This framework is harmonised with Agenda 2063 Second Ten-Year Implementation Plan (2024–2033) on responsive institutions and integration; COMESA's Inclusive Digitalisation of Eastern & Southern Africa (IDEA) programme for regional harmonisation and trusted platforms; SADC's Digital Transformation Strategy and Action Plan (SADC-DTS) for regulatory convergence and skills; and EAC's digital integration pathway (EA-RDIP) and EAC-EU co-creation roadmap for cross-border data governance and e-services. Security posture and lawful data processing are grounded in NIST SP 800-207 (Zero Trust Architecture) and the AU Malabo Convention; fiduciary transparency uses the Open Contracting Data Standard (OCDS); accessibility is enforced via WCAG 2.1.

11.2 Instruments of Participation

Participation is formalised through a layered instrument set issued by the National Digital Architecture Council (N-DAC) and Country Steering Committee (CSC):

- **Memoranda of Understanding (MoUs)**: define mandate, scope, and performance duties for participating entities.
- **Operating Circulars (OCs)**: codify technical standards and compliance obligations for identity, registry, case/records, APIs, portals, and policy-simulation tools.
- Accreditation Orders (AOs): certify hosting environments, API gateways, and platform conformance (Zero Trust, accessibility, lawful data processing).
- Publication Mandates (PMs): require machine-readable disclosure of procurement, audit certificates, accessibility conformance, and lawful transfer registers (OCDS, WCAG, JSON/XML APIs).

11.3 Partner Classes, Entry Conditions, and Obligations

Table 11-A — Partner Classes, Entry Conditions, Obligations, and Verification

Partner Class	Entry Conditions	Core Obligations	Verification & Disclosure
Public Authorities (ministries/agencies)	designation of	Implement DGIP standards across identity/registry/records; operate API gateway; publish MRV; enforce lawful data processing & Zero Trust	-
Supreme Audit Institution / Data Protection Authority / Procurement Regulator	Accreditation Order; independence	Conduct fiduciary audits; supervise data rights and lawful transfers; enforce OCDS publication and tender integrity	Annual fiduciary audit; OCDS datasets; lawful transfer register; accessibility statements
Academia (universities, public schools of	accreditation	Deliver DGIP curriculum (Foundational/Applied/Advanced);	Instructor certification; practicum logs; MRV sampling; REC



Partner Class	Entry Conditions	Core Obligations	Verification & Disclosure
administration, vocational institutes)		host innovation/practicum labs; produce applied research	knowledge platform contributions
Technology Partners (platform vendors, hosting providers, integrators)	Profile; hosting	Provide services under vendor-neutral, interoperable standards; enforce Zero Trust; guarantee accessibility; support lawful cross-border data under REC protocols	Operational/hosting certificates; accessibility conformance statements; audited API transaction logs; REC interoperability pilot reports
DFIs and International Partners	Financing MoU; performance-linked disbursement agreement	Fund shared services (Interoperability Hubs, Credential Registries); support audits, capacity transfer, and REC harmonisation	Disbursement tied to audited milestones; public financing notes; REC observatory entries

11.4 Operating Circulars: Minimum Technical and Compliance Clauses

Every Operating Circular issued under DGIP shall include at minimum:

- 1. **Security Posture**: **Zero Trust** enforcement (continuous authentication/authorisation, least-privilege, resource segmentation, telemetry, incident response).
- 2. **Data Protection**: Malabo-aligned lawful bases, data subject rights, residency and cross-border transfer rules; sovereign hosting accreditation and lawful egress documentation.
- 3. **Interoperability**: National API Governance Code; schema registry; gateway policy; audited logs; versioning and backward compatibility; REC protocol alignment.
- 4. **Transparency**: **OCDS** publication across planning, tender, award, contract, implementation; machine-readable audit certificates and performance reports.
- 5. **Accessibility**: **WCAG 2.1** conformance; assistive technologies; multilingual interfaces; quarterly accessibility audits and remediation.

11.5 Participation Workflow and On-Boarding

Table 11-B — Participation Workflow (Steps, Evidence, and Exit Criteria)

Step	Description		Exit Criteria
1. Application &	Entity submits expression of interest; CSC screens mandate,	Eol dossier; compliance officer designation; preliminary risk and capability profile	issuance of MoU



Step	Description	Evidence Submitted	Exit Criteria
Adoption	issuance/acceptance of Operating Circulars; Conformance	teeriinear standards	lonhoarding nlan andl
3. Accreditation	accreditation; accessibility attestation; data protection		Accreditation granted: registry
4. Pilot & Verification	Interoperability pilot with audited API logs; OCDS publication; MRV dashboards live	published datasets and	
5. Full Participation	quarterly/annual reporting;	Quarterly compliance; annual audit certificates; REC observatory updates	standing; eligibility

11.6 Performance-Linked Obligations and Disbursement

DGIP requires that partner financing and participation privileges be contingent on verified performance under the MRV framework (Chapter 9). Illustrative triggers:

- Infrastructure tranche: released upon hosting accreditation and Zero Trust posture validation (NIST SP 800-207).
- **Fiduciary tranche**: released when **OCDS** coverage reaches defined thresholds (e.g., ≥80% of eligible events) and spend analytics demonstrate anomaly management.
- **Inclusion tranche**: released upon **WCAG 2.1** audit pass rates and published accessibility conformance statements.
- Interoperability tranche: released after REC pilot validation (COMESA/SADC/EAC) and publication of interoperability dossiers.

11.7 Partnership Classes and Calls-to-Action (CTAs)

DGIP authorises targeted CTAs to accelerate lawful, secure, and transparent deployment. CTAs are issued by DEIC/N-DAC and published on government portals and REC platforms.

Table 11-C — CTAs (Partner Class, Opportunity, Obligations, Verification)

CTA Partner Class	Opportunity	Obligations	Verification
DFIs and MDBs	Credential/Accreditation	Performance-linked tranches; audit financing;	Disbursement audits; REC dashboard entries;



CTA Partner Class	Opportunity	Obligations	Verification
		disclosure of financing terms	public financing notes [afdb.org]
Sovereign Cloud/Hosting Providers	Sovereign hosting accreditation; compliant data residency and lawful cross-border	Zero Trust controls;	Hosting accreditation order; posture validation certificate; public registry listing [au.int]
API Gateway and Integration Firms	registries; enforce gateway	Vendor-neutrality;	Audited API logs; gateway accreditation; pilot reports [afdb.org]
Accessibility and Assistive Tech Firms	WCAG audits; assistive tech integration; multilingual interface enablement	Quarterly audits; conformance statements; user testing with	Accessibility certificates; remediation logs; dashboard disclosures [unesco.nl]
Universities/Schools of Administration	Deliver DGIP Governance Curriculum; host practicums	Instructor certification; lab charters; MRV sampling	Certification registry entries; practicum performance reports [afdb.org]

11.8 Compliance, Grievance Redress, and Sanctions

Partners are subject to DGIP's compliance obligations (Chapter 6). Non-compliance triggers **Corrective Action Plans (CAPs)**, **suspension of accreditation**, **funding reallocation**, **public censure**, and, where necessary, **escalation to the DESA Central Unit**. Grievance redress is accessible via national portals, with quarterly publication of complaint categories (privacy/data protection, accessibility, algorithmic bias, procurement integrity, service delay) and remediation actions.

11.9 Regional Harmonisation of Participation

DGIP participation instruments shall be **portable** across COMESA, SADC, and EAC through REC-level protocols:

- COMESA: participation recorded within IDEA's Regional Harmonisation & Planning Platform and PCU, with shared services eligibility tied to REC validation.
- SADC: participation aligned with SADC-DTS observatory and recommended regional programme studies/initiatives.



• EAC: participation integrated via EA-RDIP and the EAC-EU digital roadmap (D4D), enabling pilots on cross-border e-services and data centres.

11.10 Closing Determination

This Participation and Partnership Framework is affirmed as a sovereign, ethical, and scalable instrument for DGIP deployment. It binds partners to lawful data protection (Malabo), rigorous security (NIST SP 800-207), fiduciary transparency (OCDS), and accessibility (WCAG 2.1) while aligning participation with REC strategies (COMESA IDEA, SADC-DTS, EAC EA-RDIP) and Agenda 2063. By conditioning privileges and financing on independently verified performance and public disclosure, DGIP guarantees institutional legitimacy, market confidence, and regional interoperability.

Chapter 12: Closing Statement and Expected Data Usage (Monthly/Annual), with Rationale for Fiber Optics versus Satellite Connectivity

12.1 Closing Statement

The DESA Governance Innovation Programme (DGIP) constitutes a sovereign, lawful, and auditable framework for digitalisation across government, designed to be interoperable within national borders and replicable across Regional Economic Communities (RECs). Its instruments—Operating Circulars, Accreditation Orders, and Publication Mandates—bind identity, registry, case and records systems, e-procurement transparency (OCDS), accessibility (WCAG 2.1), and Zero Trust security (NIST SP 800-207) to a unified Monitoring, Reporting and Verification (MRV) discipline. Such convergence is aligned to the Agenda 2063 Second Ten-Year Implementation Plan (2024–2033) for responsive institutions and deeper integration, and operationalises regional digitalisation mandates under COMESA's IDEA, SADC-DTS, and EAC EA-RDIP.

DGIP is thereby positioned as the lawful engine of DESA's digitalisation project—capable of delivering measurable improvements in service delivery, fiduciary integrity, and public trust, while enabling results-based financing and REC-level shared services. The World Bank's IDEA program further validates the regional need and financing architecture for integrated digital markets, highlighting current coverage and usage gaps and setting out a multi-phase approach intended to benefit 180 million people by 2032. DGIP's institutional design, MRV cadence, and transparency obligations are calibrated to meet this expectation.

12.2 Expected Data Usage (Monthly and Annual) — Baseline Ranges and Assumptions

Data usage depends on user roles, application profiles, and access networks. Africa-wide benchmarks show low average mobile consumption per connection (\approx 2.5 GB/month in 2023) relative to global averages (\approx 13–22 GB/month), driven by affordability, device, and coverage gaps; video constitutes a major share of traffic and will continue to rise. Fixed broadband users globally consume much more than mobile users; analyses report \approx 234 GB/month per fixed broadband line worldwide (2023), although country variance is high and African fixed usage is below this global mean. These realities guide prudent target-setting for AfDB and DESA.



Table 12-A — Indicative Monthly Data Usage (per active user), by Role and Connectivity Type

User Role	Connectivity Context	Baseline Month 0–6 (Initiation)	Month 6–18 (Scale-Up)	Month 18–36 (Consolidation)
Citizen (general)	Mobile data (4G/5G where available)	3–6 GB	6–12 GB	10–18 GB
Citizen (fixed broadband household)	I FTTH/FTTx I	40–80 GB	80–150 GB	150–250 GB
Public servant (office)	Sovereign fixed access; heavy app use	60–120 GB	120–200 GB	200–300 GB
Teacher/student (school)	Fixed access; LMS/video; lab usage	30–80 GB	80–150 GB	150–250 GB
SME (portal & e-procurement)	Fixed or business mobile	50–100 GB	100–180 GB	180–280 GB

Methodology notes.

- 1. Mobile baselines start above Africa's current average (≈2.5 GB/month) to reflect programme activation (portals, identity, registries, video learning).
- 2. Fixed lines scale toward fractions of the global fixed benchmark (≈234 GB/month), with conservative ranges to account for affordability and device constraints.
- 3. Roles experiencing video, collaboration, and e-services (schools, public offices) have elevated targets consistent with global traffic composition (dominant video share).

Annualisation. Multiply the monthly ranges by 12; for example, a consolidated fixed-broadband household target at 150–250 GB/month corresponds to 1.8–3.0 TB/year.

12.3 Aggregate Programme Utilisation — Order-of-Magnitude Planning

For AfDB portfolio estimation, a practical approach is to model data usage per "activated user" within DGIP jurisdictions:

- Scenario A (urban-leading): 1 million activated users; 60% mobile-only (12 GB/month), 40% fixed (180 GB/month) → Monthly total ≈ 100 million GB; Annual ≈ 1.2 billion GB (1.2 EB).
- Scenario B (balanced): 2 million activated users; 70% mobile-only (10 GB/month), 30% fixed (150 GB/month) → Monthly total ≈ 120 million GB; Annual ≈ 1.44 EB.
- Scenario C (education-heavy): 500 k students/teachers on fixed (200 GB/month) + 1.5 million citizens mobile (12 GB/month) → Monthly total ≈ 90 million GB; Annual ≈ 1.08 EB.



These orders of magnitude are consistent with global trends of rising video and cloud usage and with Africa's need to close usage gaps via affordability, skills, and locally relevant services—key emphases in ITU's connectivity analyses and World Bank digitalisation briefs.

12.4 Why Fiber versus Satellite (with a lawful, resilient hybrid)

a) Latency and Application Quality.

Fiber delivers single-digit to ~10–30 ms latencies within national networks and to nearby content, suitable for real-time services and policy-simulation tools; geostationary satellites are intrinsically ~600+ ms round-trip, while LEO satellite services (e.g., Starlink) achieve ~25–60 ms, improving but still sensitive to congestion and pathing. Fiber is thus the primary medium for government backbones, data centres, and school networks requiring low-latency MRV, identity, and records workloads.

b) Throughput and Scalability.

Fiber routinely supports 1–10 Gbps services, with symmetric options and scalable capacity via DWDM and metro aggregation; LEO satellite plans typically deliver 50–200+ Mbps (higher tiers exist, but aggregate beam capacity is shared and variable). For mass activation of portals, open contracting publication, and video-rich education, fiber's throughput and deterministic scaling are essential.

c) Cost per Bit and Opex Stability.

Published market analyses indicate satellite capacity costs are falling with HTS/NGSO but remain higher per delivered bit than terrestrial fiber backbones; satellite is excellent for last-resort coverage, mobility, and rapid stand-up, while fiber offers superior lifetime cost per bit for fixed public institutions, metro backhaul, and nationwide gateways.

d) Reliability, Weather, and Legal Control.

Fiber is less susceptible to rain fade and atmospheric conditions, supports sovereign hosting and lawful residency, and integrates cleanly with Zero Trust and audited API gateways. Satellite provides invaluable redundancy and rural reach (including schools and clinics) but should complement—not replace—fiber backbones and municipal access networks where feasible.

e) Policy Alignment and Economies of Scale.

World Bank and ITU emphasise structural reforms and affordable, reliable broadband with integrated markets; fiber networks achieve superior economies in urban and peri-urban corridors, enabling price reductions and usage growth. Satellite contributes to universal access objectives but does not obviate the need for terrestrial investment to support meaningful connectivity at scale.

12.5 Recommended Hybrid Design for DESA/AfDB Portfolios

Table 12-B — Connectivity Design Choices (Government Digitalisation)

Layer	Primary Medium	Role	Rationale
National backbone & data centres	Fiber (DWDM/OTN)	Sovereign hosting; inter-ministry exchange; REC peering	Lowest latency, highest throughput, lawful residency, deterministic scaling; core of MRV and APIs
Metro access (ministries/schools)	FTTx/Metro fiber; fixed wireless where interim	High-demand sites; education & health	Throughput and cost per bit for video, collaboration, e-procurement; stable QoS



Layer	Primary Medium	Role	Rationale
Rural/remote edge & resilience	LEO satellite (with caching) + microwave	Rapid coverage; redundancy; mobility	Fast deployment to hard-to-reach areas; continuity during fiber cuts/weather events
Citizen access (homes/SMEs)	Mixed: Fiber/5G/4G	Inclusive uptake; affordability	Scalable services; blended plans; demand stimulation via portals and content

12.6 Adoption Drivers and Usage Growth Plan (12–36 months)

- Affordability & Devices. Apply targeted subsidies/vouchers and public Wi-Fi to raise monthly mobile consumption beyond Africa's ≈2.5 GB baseline; benchmark progress against GSMA's affordability and readiness indicators.
- Content & Services. Prioritise education video, e-government portals, and local language content to increase productive usage consistent with ITU's "meaningful connectivity" framework.
- 3. **Institutional Demand.** Activate schools and public offices first; their traffic anchors metro fiber economics and promotes household uptake through community spillovers (evening access, homework).
- 4. **MRV Transparency.** Publish usage KPIs quarterly on national and REC dashboards; link financing tranches to verified milestones (OCDS coverage; Zero Trust posture; WCAG audits).

12.7 Final Determination

DGIP's closing determination confirms the institutional, legal, and technical sufficiency to motivate DESA's national digitalisation, provide credible utilisation forecasts to AfDB, and justify fiber investment as the backbone of sovereign, low-latency governance—complemented by satellite for resilience and rural reach. The expected data usage ranges (monthly and annual) are conservative yet progressive, matched to Africa's observed gaps and the programme's inclusion and affordability measures. The hybrid design ensures lawful residency, superior quality of service, and regional interoperability consistent with Agenda 2063, ITU guidance on meaningful connectivity, and World Bank regional programmes such as IDEA.

Sources (key citations)

- Agenda 2063 Second Ten-Year Implementation Plan (2024–2033): African Union. [itu.int]
- World Bank Inclusive Digitalization in Eastern & Southern Africa (IDEA): Press release, June 27, 2024; Regional overview. [worldbank.org], [worldbank.org]
- ITU Global Connectivity Report; Broadband Reports: Global Connectivity Report 2022; Broadband Reports series. [itu.int], [itu.int]
- GSMA/TelecomLead Africa mobile usage: Mobile Internet trends Africa. [telecomlead.com]



- Global fixed usage (indicative): <u>Bandwidth statistics (2025)</u>. [gitnux.org]
- Traffic composition and growth: <u>Digital 2025 mobile data consumption (Ericsson analysis)</u>. [datareportal.com]
- Latency/throughput comparisons: <u>Satellite vs. fiber latency/bandwidth overview; Starlink latency note and specifications. [ts2.tech]</u>, [starlink.com], [starlink.com]
- Policy and digital infrastructure: World Bank digital infrastructure brief